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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

COMMISSIONERS: � Jon Leibowitz, Chairman 
William E. Kovacic 
J. Thomas Rosch 
Edith Ramirez 
Julie Brill 

In the Matter of 

THE NORTH CAROLINA BOARD OF DOCKET NO. 9343 
DENTAL EXAMINERS 

COMPLAINT 

Pursuant to the provisions of the 



elected to this position by the licensed dentists of North Carolina, and serves a three-year 
term. Collectively, the six dentist members can and do control the operation of the 
Dental Board. Each dentist member is financially interested in decisions reached by the 
Dental Board because, while serving on the Dental Board, each dentist member continues 
to engage in the for-profit business of providing dental services. 

3. 	 The conduct of the Dental Board constitutes concerted action by its members and the 
dentists of North Carolina. 

4. 	 The Dental Board is the sole licensing authority for dentists in North Carolina. It is 
unlawful for an individual to practice dentistry in North Carolina without holding a 
current license to practice issued by the Dental Board. The Dental Board is also tasked 
with policing instances of unauthorized practice of dentistry ("UPD") as defined by and 
pursuant to the North Carolina dental statute. 

JURISDICTION 

5. 	 The Dental Board is a "person" within the meaning of Section 5 of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.c. § 45. 

6. 	 The acts and practices of the Dental Board, including the acts and practices alleged 
herein, are in commerce or affect commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of 
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44. In particular, dentists 
and non-dentist providers of teeth whitening services in North Carolina purchase and 
receive products and equipment that are shipped across state lines by manufacturers and 
suppliers located out of state, and transfer money across state lines in payment for these 
products and equipment. Further, the actions alleged herein deter persons from other 
states from providing teeth whitening services in North Carolina. 

THE RELEVANT MARKET 

7. 	 The relevant market in which to evaluate the conduct of the Dental Board is the provision 
of teeth whitening services in North Carolina. Teeth whitening services are offered by 
dentists and non-dentists. 

8. 	 Many dentists offer patients both in-office teeth whitening services and take-home teeth 
whitening kits. The most common in-office procedure consists of covering the gums 
with a protective material, applying to the teeth a hydrogen peroxide solution in the 20­
35 percent range, and then exposing the teeth to a light source. Take home kits include a 
custom-made whitening tray, and a whitening gel that is generally a 15-20 percent 
carbamide peroxide solution. The consumer self-applies the gel in essentially the same 
manner as when using an over-the counter ("OTC") teeth whitening product purchased 
at, for example, a pharmacy. 

9. 	 During the last several years, in much of the United States, there has been an expansion 
of teeth whitening operations by non-dentists. Entrepreneurs have begun offering teeth­
whitening services in salons, retail stores, and mall kiosks. 
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10. 	 Typically, a non-dentist provider operates in the following way. The provider hands a 
strip or tray containing peroxide to the customer, who applies it to his or her own teeth. 
The customer's teeth are then exposed to a light-emitting diode ("LED") light source for 
15 to 30 minutes. The amount of hydrogen peroxide applied to the teeth at non-dentist 
outlets generally falls into the 10-15 percent range. This is a greater concentration than 
OTC products (usually 10 percent or less), but less than the concentration employed in 
dentist-applied products (approximately 20-35 percent). The non-dentist provider 
generally does not touch the customer's mouth. 

11. 	 Teeth whitening services performed by non-dentists are much less expensive than those 
performed by dentists. A non-dentist typically charges $100 to $200 per session, 
whereas dentists typically charge $300 to $700, with some procedures 



19. 	 In particular, the Dental Board has engaged in extra-judicial activities aimed at 
preventing non-dentists from providing teeth whitening services in North Carolina. 
These activities are not authorized by statute and circumvent any review or oversight by 
the State. 

20. 	 On 42 occasions, the Dental Board transmitted letters to non-dentist teeth whitening 
providers, communicating to the recipients that they were illegally practicing dentistry 
without a license and ordering the recipients to cease and desist from providing teeth 
whitening services. 
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VIOLATIONS ALLEGED 

26. 	 The combination, conspiracy, acts and practices described above, constitute 
anticompetitive and unfair methods of competition in and 



Notice of Contemplated Relief 

Should the Commission conclude from the record developed in any adjudicative 
proceedings in this matter that respondent's conduct violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act as alleged in the complaint, the Commission may order such relief as is 
supported by the record and is necessary and appropriate, including but not limited to: 

1. 	 Requiring respondent to provide appropriate notification to an independent state 
authority of any proposed or contemplated action of the Dental Board that may, if 
implemented by the Dental Board, restrain the provision of teeth whitening services by 
non-dentist providers. 

2. 	 Requiring respondent to secure the prior and appropriate approval of an independent state 
authority before taking any action that may restrain the provision of teeth whitening 
services by non-dentist providers. 

3. 	 Requiring respondent to cease and desist from directing any non-dentist provider of teeth 
whitening services to cease providing teeth whitening services. 

4. 	 Requiring respondent to cease and desist communicating to any non-dentist provider of 
teeth whitening services that: (i) such non-dentist provider is violating, has violated, or 
may be violating the North Carolina Dental Practice Act by providing teeth whitening 
services; or (ii) the provision of teeth whitening services by a non-dentist provider is 



WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, the Federal Trade Commission on 
this seventeenth day of June, 2010, issues its complaint against the Dental Board. 

By the Commission, Commissioner Brill recused. 

Richard C. Donohue 
Acting Secretary 

SEAL: 
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